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1. Pledge to the Flag 

Mr. Buckley would you lead us in the Pledge to the Flag. 

2. Chairman announcement(s) 

I do not have many announcements, Nancy Padula was not able to make it this evening as she has a sick 

child with covid. She is joining on zoom just to observe.   Most of us from the Board participated in the 

Saratoga County Planning and Zoning Conference on February 1st.  Overall, it was an excellent 

conference with over 600 people attended, even outside the county.   They have scheduled the 2024 

Conference for January 31, 2024.  Reminder that if you have your attendance sheet from the 

Conference please provide to Sue as a means of recording your yearly required training.  I will also be 

attending the NYS Association of Towns Annual Meeting and Conference next weekend in New York 

City. Computers have been delivered, they are in a box under neath the table, at the end of the meeting 

please take your assigned computer. Bill is trying to line up some training that we could get for both the 

planning and zoning boards, maybe 1 or 2 dates. I think they have assigned your town of Milton NY 

email address. Was that the email that everyone got their computers?  

Bill Lewis- Yes, they are listed on the box. 

Councilwoman Kerr-everyone has a name, temporary password, and email address. 
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3. Approval of minutes from January 11, 2022  

Our first order of business today is Approval of our January meeting minutes.  I will entertain a Motion to 

approve the January 11, 2023 meeting minutes; Mr. Whittel Second Ms. Stevens, any discussion, or 

corrections; please Poll the Board, Mr. Marsicano-Abstain, Ms. VanDeinse, Yes, Ms. Stevens, Yes, Mr. 

Buckley, Yes, Mr. Whittel, Yes, Chairman Bartow, Yes 

 

Chairman Bartow-Did you abstain because you were not here? Ok, just a matter of record, if you 

reviewed the record, you can always vote on the minutes, you don’t have to abstain.  

Mr. Mariscano-Yes, ok, no I was not listening. 

Mr. Keniry- or if you were listening.  

 

4. Public Comment 

We will open the floor to public comment.  We do have a public hearing scheduled this evening for the 

Jumper Bean Pre-school Site Plan and Special Use Permit so if you have comments on that project 

please wait until we start that hearing so your comments may be on the record. If you have comments 

on any other projects or any matter before the Planning Board now is your opportunity to comment.  

 

We continue to have both virtual and in-person opportunities for comments so I would ask that if you 
are Zooming with us and want to make a public comment, please use the hand wave feature, or 
submit via the Q&A button and alert us to your interest in commenting. If you have dialed in on the 
phone and would like to make a comment, please text Bill Lewis at 518-376-1831 and provide him 
with your name and interest in making a comment. 
 
I would also ask that you limit individual comments to 3 minutes and for commentors to try and avoid 
redundant comments. If you have written comments, please summarize them and if you would like 
you can leave a copy with us, and we will share them with all board members. 
 
Public comment opened at 7:04pm 
Public comment closed at 7:05pm 
 

5. Public Hearing 7:05pm Jumper Bean Preschool—Site Plan Review and Special Use Permit 

Application-190.6-1-30 

Next, we have our continued review and public hearing for the Jumper Bean Pre-school Site Plan and 
Special Use Permit.  Everyone should have before them: 
 

1. Site Plan Review Application dated 12/28/22. 

2. Special Use Permit Application dated 12/28/22. 

3. SEAF Short Form12/28/22 

4. Deed dated 5/9/18. 
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5. Site Plan Drawings dated 12/28/22. 

6. Easement and map dated 4/26/11. 

7. Memo from Delaware Engineering dated 1/11/23. 

8. Email from Jason Singer dated 1/11/23 outlining parking calculations. 

9. Proposed Site Layout Plan dated 1/11/23 showing 11 parking spaces.  

10. Correspondence dated 1/25/23 from Joel Singer responding to TDE comments of 1/11/23 

11. Correspondence dated 1/25/23 from Nolan Engineering regarding additional stormwater 

evaluation for added impervious surfaces. 

12. Revised Site Plans dated 1/25/23. 

Mr. Singer, do you or the applicant have anything new for us regarding the project? 

Mr. Singer-Yes, I would like to present the new plan, I can walk through the memo we put together 

explaining the change, but the main point of the discussion last time was he parking and a way to get 

additional parking for the site.  Ashely, the owner was to go talk with the neighbor of the dental 

office, but she has not had any success. So, we have gone this route, like we have discussed, if you can 

see, we have added parking to the back of the site. If you can see we continued to the back and 

started to go a little bit into play space, a balance between getting as much parking as we could and 

keeping as much grass as possible. We ended up gaining 5 additional parking spaces. We had 2 spaces 

with the parents dropping children off and there are 13 staff, so we are really close to meeting that 

total of 15. 

The other things we delt with was that we added lighting back there, that was not there before and 

she needs. We had done a storm water design; engineers have gone through that and it is showing 

that on the storm water plan here. The plan is to remove the existing the dry well catch basin that is 

there now, it is too small for the additional asphalt. Putting in a bigger one back there and adding a 

new one which we had before to collect the water from the roof, to capture the water from the roof 

and get it into the ground. So that has been evaluated and designed. The utilities, the water service, 

we took that advice, we talked with Mike Macramara, from Heritage Springs, who she is going to have 

to coordinate with. He gave us his feedback. We changed the water line, instead of water line going 

under the new building, we talked about putting a new meter at the front of the building, so we are 

not burying is his line underneath the addition. We have also shown the sanitary, how it is connecting 

off of the existing line outside the building, going into a grinder pump, sending it to the front. We 

were asked to show more information on the chain link fence, we showed some images of the 

existing, we show additional information on the room area, the calculations, how we got the size of 

the rooms based on the child family services requirements, the square footage. I think that is about it.  

Mr. Lewis: I spoke to Mr. Singer about the storm water plan over the phone.  I am satisfied with the 

elevations and the pitch.  The downward lighting was addressed and so was the dumpster positioning, 

the screening will remain on the residential side.   
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Ms. Bianconi:  The parking has improved.  This configuration does give you a turnaround space 

between the rear of the building and dumpster.  This will give us more room for vehicle circulation.  

This arrangement also does preserve a lot more of the green space, we always try to achieve more 

green space.  I think the changes have brought the plan more closely in mind to code requirements 

and good site plan practices.     

 

Chairman Bartow: Ok, so I will open the public hearing at 7:11 p.m. 

 

Once again, we continue to have both virtual and in-person opportunities for comments so I would 
ask that if you are Zooming with us and want to make a public comment, please use the hand wave 
feature, or submit via the Q&A button and alert us to your interest in commenting. If you have dialed 
in on the phone and would like to make a comment, please text Bill Lewis at 518-376-1831 and 
provide him with your name and interest in making a comment. 
 
I would also ask that you limit individual comments to 3 minutes and for commentors to try and avoid 
redundant comments. If you have written comments, please summarize them and if you would like 
you can leave a copy with us, and we will share them with all board members. 
 
Trevor Marsh – 439 Geyser Rd: I am totally against any expansion of Jumper Bean. It is the nosiest 
business.  As you can imagine there are children screeching every day, all day.  If we sit outside, we 
always have to go back in. Any expansion is just going to be more noise due to the more children. The 
people that live around this business should be considered.  I know that it is considered to be a 
commercial area, we brought the property to use as a business.  We didn’t do that but I still think that 
there should be consideration for the neighbors. Personally, I resent the noise and I resent that you 
are considering approving this just because they want to expand.  They should have found 
somewhere more rural.  If they are not happy with this building they should go and buy a bigger 
building. This is the wrong place for this business.  My neighbor that is 3,000 yards away, asks me how 
I can put up with the noise, she can hear it too.  I am against this and I am sure that the people in 
Geyser Crest are upset also.  You can hear the children in the Crest.  I have come to give my opinion 
and I resent it, I have to live with it, all day. Thank you for allowing me to voice my opinion.  
 

Chairman Bartow: Anyone else like to make a comment on this project, anyone on Zoom?  

There being no further public comment I will entertain a Motion to close the public hearing for the 

Jumper Bean Daycare Site Plan and Special Use Permit at 7:15 p.m.; Mr. Whittel Second, Ms. 

VanDeinse, any discussion; please poll the Board.  Mr. Marsicano - yes, Ms. VanDeinse – yes,   Ms. 

Stevens – yes,   Mr. Whittel – yes,   Mr. Buckley – yes,  Chairman Bartow - yes    

 

Chairman Bartow: Marybeth do you have any additional comments about the parking.  

 

Ms. Bianconi:  As we discussed, if you do the math that is provided in the code book, this will require 
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131 parking spaces, given the operations that seems excess.  We would also end up with a lot of 

excessive asphalt.  This modification seems to be the best option.  

 

Mr. Mariscano:  Does this met code?  

 

Chairman Bartow:  There is a way to calculate the number of spaces, but the code was meant to be 

flexible due to the use of the space.  

 

Ms. VanDeinse:  This seems like a good solution.  

 

Mr. Marsicano: Side set back at 4 foot 4 inches.  Is that accurate?    

 

Mr. Lewis: That is correct, there is a zero-side set back in TC.  

 

Mr. Buckley:  In reference to the fence, is it in the easement area?  

 

Mr. Singer: It is outside the easement.  

 

Mr. Buckley:  On the map it seems to be outside the easement area.  

 

Mr. Lewis: The fence was constructed by the dental office with the permission and granted easement 

from the previous owner.  Technically the fence is on the daycare’s property, with the exception of 

the back property. Normally the applicant could force the dentist office to move the fence but since 

there is an easement, they can’t.  

 

Mr. Whittel:  I like what you did with the property, it works well.  Something that you could consider is 

the lighting.  You have them directed at the parking area only. You could put a double light on there 

that goes to the grass as well.  If you are constructing, this would be the time to do it, its not required 

but it would allow you lighting on the grass area.  

 

Mr. Keniry: Where did we land with the County Planning Board on this? 

 

Chairman Bartow: They sent a letter saying it was on town highway and they didn’t need to review it.  

 

Mr. Keniry: So, they take the position that it is non jurisdictional.  

 

Chairman Bartow:  We have completed a SEQRE review and conducted our public hearing.  

Having completed our SEQRA review and conducted our public hearing I will entertain a Motion to 
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approve the Site Plan for the Jumper Bean Pre-school located at 441 Geyser Rd.; Second, any 

discussion; please Poll the Board. Ms. VanDeinse, 2nd Mr. Buckley.  Mr. Marsicano – yes,  Ms. 

VanDeinse – yes,   Ms. Stevens – yes,   Mr. Whittel – yes,   Mr. Buckley – yes,   Chairman Bartow - yes    

 

I will now entertain a Motion to approve a Special Use Permit for a daycare for the Jumper Bean 

Pre-school at 441 Geyser Rd.; Ms. VanDeinse, Second, Mr. Buckley. Any discussion; please Poll the 

Board.  Mr. Marsicano - yes,  Ms. VanDeinse – yes,   Ms. Stevens – yes,   Mr. Whittel – yes,   Mr. 

Buckley – yes, Chairman Bartow, yes.     

 

Chairman Bartow: I do have one comment.   We are explicitly making this Special Use Permit for a 

Daycare.   If the building is sold, it cannot be made into something else without revisiting the parking.  

That would require an additional Special Use Permit.   

 

6.  336 Rowland Street – Trojanski – Major Subdivision – 190.-7-9- Continued 
Next, we have before us the continued review of the Trojanski Major Subdivision at 336 Rowland St.  
Please note that Mr. Buckley is recusing himself from this project. In addition to the 49 documents, 
we have had on this project everyone should have also: 
 
21. Response to TDE comments of June 20, 2022, dated July 27, 2022 
22. Revised FEAF dated July 27, 2022. 
23.  Revised Subdivision Plats dated July 27, 2022 
24.  Email from TDE Joel; Bianchi dated 8-9-22 regarding outstanding items for 

complete application. 
25.  SWPP revised 7/26/22 
26.  Correspondence from the LA Group dated 7/27/22 responding to MJ 

comments dated 6/20/22 
27.  Revised engineering drawings dated 7/27/22 
28.  Email from our Town engineer dated 8/9/22 to the LA Group outlining certain 

requirements for a complete application. 
29.  Correspondence dated 8/11/22 from Heritage Springs Waterworks providing a 

commitment to service. 
30.  Preliminary Plat subdivision plats dated 8/19/22. 
31.  Email from Doug Heller dated 9-8-22 conveying home elevations 
32.  Home elevations dated 9-8-22 
33.  Email from Sue Rosenburg dated 8-23-22  
34.  GPI Site Distance Memo dated 8/30/22 
35.  Saratoga County Planning Board referral dated 9/16/22 noting no countywide 

or intermunicipal impacts. 
36.  Revised Subdivision Plat reflecting “access gates” dated 9/27/22 
37.  Correspondence from Tooher & Barone dated 10/4/22 
38.  Email from the USPS Malta Postmaster dated 10/5/22 accepting the kiosk 

locations. 
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39.  HOA Responsibility letter dated 10/4/22 
41. Correspondence dated 10/5/22 from Mark Wilkes. 
42. Correspondence from Elizabeth Byrne LLC dated 10/25/22 regarding the HOA 
43. Revised Subdivision plans dated received 10/26/22 
44.Email from TDE Joel Bianchi to Douglas Heller outlining latest comments on 
proposed subdivision. 
45. Email from Douglas Heller dated 10/28/22 requesting a postponement of the 
public hearing scheduled for 11/9/22. 
46. Revised Subdivision Cover Letter dated 11-29-22 
47. Revised Subdivision Plat Plans dated 11/29/22. 
48. Revised FEAF Part 1 dated 11/29/22 noting no material environmental change. 
49. Revised SWPP dated 11-29-22 
50. The LA Group response to our TDE comments dated 12/13/22 
51. A revised set of plans including a Subdivision Plat dated January 9, 2023. 
52. Correspondence from TDE MJ Engineering reflecting their 4th set of comments on the project. 

 
Mr. Heller, do you have an update on the project for us? 
 
Mr. Heller: Made a couple of changes since the last time we were here that the TDE 
wanted to see. We have moved the stormwater basin to the correct property.  We 
have also eliminated the emergency access road on Red Coach Trail but we have 
maintained the access on Burning Pines. Burning Pines will still have the gate and 
gravel drive.  The proposed trail that we have along the road, we are bringing it to 
Burning Pines and no longer extending it to the last.  We have also located all of the 
street trees to the property.  We have changed them to honey locusts which are 
more salt tolerant.  Those are the substantial changes to the plans.  Everything else 
remains the same.  
 
Ms. Stevens: Did you add more trees in or just what is already coverage?  
 
Mr. Heller: Based off the conversation last time we were here, there will be 15-20 
more trees added. They will be white pine or hemlock trees.  I am not sure of the 
location of them once clearing is done; we will see where they need to be and then 
plant them.  
 
Mr. Whittel:  So, that is the purpose of the note on C-3.0? 
 
Mr. Heller: Yes 
 
Mr. Whittle:  Is anyone from the Town going to be involved in the decision of where 
the trees go?  
 
Mr. Heller:  I do not have an issue with the town being involved once the property is 
cleared out. 
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Mr. Whittel: On the Southern end of the property, is there anything there? 
Something ensuring the buffer won’t be disturbed.  
 
Mr. Heller: We are not proposing that right now. Dave had spoken last time on how 
far he wanted to cut those lots.  
 
Mr. Trojanski: We were thinking 40 feet.  We are doing this in Iron springs right now 
and it has worked out well.  It maintains a decent amount of privacy.   
  
Mr. Whittel: We would have to do a deed restriction for the no cut buffer.  
 
Chairman Bartow:  We could include this in the HOA.  The resident would have to go 
to the HOA to ask if they could clear back any further and what their reasons are.  
Dave, is there room on those lots to put a pool in or anything else they may want to 
do.  
 
Mr. Heller:  The total depth of the properties is 160 feet.  
 
Mr. Trojanski:  We are going to clear about 140, so we would actually maintain about 
30 feet. So, 40-50 feet usually works. I think to put 20 foot non cut buffer in the 
agreement would be reasonable.  20 feet would put us at good limits.  
 
Mr. Keniry: So, you would have a homeowners association filing.  Though what I 
would really like to be looked at is the language as it relates to the declaration and 
restrictions, just so we are sure that it is no less than 20 feet and it is explicit to the 
restraint cutting.  This restriction will run with the land.   
Chairman Bartow: I have a few others that I want to go over.  The 4 foot trail that is 
connecting to Burning Pines but you are not connecting to the gravel area.   
 
Mr. Heller:  Your right, that is not shown.  I will take care of that.  
 
Chairman Bartow: Please make sure you coordinate that with the Town of Milton to 
ensure they are out of the easement. Regarding the kiosk, it is hard to tell if they are 
on the right of way, please make sure it is not. We will need a name for that public 
street “road”, this is for the 911 listing.  
 
Here is a list of conditions:  

1. Vegetative Buffering 

a. Applicant shall create, protect, preserve and retain a permanent natural vegetative buffer on 

the southern border of the project site with all lots situate along Margaret Drive. Such 

vegetative buffer shall contain at least twenty (20’) lineal feet of trees, be coordinated with and 

enforced by a Homeowner’s Association to the satisfaction of the Town Attorney and Town 
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designated engineer, to be recorded in the office of the Saratoga County Clerk, and to run with 

the land. 

b. Applicant shall plant trees along the northern border of the project site, between the path and 

residences situate in Geyser Crest. All plantings shall be coordinated with and in accord with 

direction from the Town Building Department generally, and relative to location, size, species, 

among other things. 

 

2. Passive Recreation Path 

a. Applicant shall in accord with direction from the Town Building Department, install a four (4’) 

foot wide asphalt trail from Rowland Street to the east side of Burning Pines Drive.  

b. Applicant shall dedicate a permanent public easement on terms acceptable to the Town 

Attorney, for completion of the trail east from Burning Pines Drive to the eastern border of the 

project site. Such easement shall extend four (4’) feet from the west/east trail north to Red 

Coach Trail and Burning Pines Drive.  

c. Applicant shall install a twenty (20’) foot gravel emergency access road with a gate and a Knox 

box in accord with direction from the Town Building Department, at Burning Pines Drive, and 

such gravel emergency access road to be insured against and from all liabilities, naming the 

Town an additional insured with an endorsed policy conferring affirmative coverage in favor of 

the Town, and all kept and maintained by a Homeowners Association established by the 

applicant. 

d. Applicant shall install and dedicate a permanent public four (4’) foot wide paved passive 

recreational trail connection to Red Coach Trail in accord with the direction from the Town 

Building Department. 

 

3. Residential Lighting   

a. Applicant shall incorporate dark skies lighting in all exterior light fixtures. 

 

4. Street Trees 

a. Street trees planted and installed by Applicant shall be Gleditsia Triacanthos (Honey Locust), 

and placed in accord with the direction of the Town Highway Department, with no less than a 

one-year warranty from the date of planting. 

 

5. Public Street 

a. Applicant shall name the public street (now called “Road”) for the purposes 911 number 

assignments. 

 

6. The Recreation Fee shall be $2,000.00 per dwelling, ($26,000.00 for the project) and such Recreation 

Fee shall be paid in full, prior to the issuance of building permits. 

 

7. Applicant shall provide executed commitments and approvals from Heritage Spring Waterworks and 

New York State Department of Environmental Conservation for public water supply. Applicant shall 
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further provide a written commitment to serve and agreement with Heritage Sewerworks and an 

approved sewer permit from Saratoga County Sewer Authority prior to the issuance of building 

permits. 

 

8. Applicant shall complete and provide a completed Homeowners Association filing with the New York 

State Attorney General, and such filing shall be satisfactorily approved by the Milton Town designated 

engineer and Town Attorney prior to the issuance of final signed plats. It is understood that the filing 

may not necessarily have been approved by the Attorney General prior to any plans being signed. 

This is a preliminary plat, they will still have to submit a final plat.  This will have to 
be done within 180 days.  If you think you can get us that within 2 weeks we would 
be willing to entertain scheduling a public hearing.  Let us know when you will be 
ready, the March or April meeting. Mary Beth has to come up to speed on the 
project and may have additional comments.  
 
There being no further comments or questions I will entertain a Motion to approve the Major 

Subdivision application preliminary plat for 336 Rowland St. subject to the following terms and 

Conditions; Mr. Whittel, Second, Ms. VanDeinse any discussion; please poll the Board.  ,  Ms. 

VanDeinse – yes,   Ms. Stevens – yes,   Mr. Whittel – yes,  Chairman Bartow - yes    

Mr. Marsicano, No.  I think that this project will cause undue hardship to the 
adjoining properties, Red Coach Trail, Fawn Drive, Burning Pine Drive. The hardship 
will be the loss of the backyard atmosphere that all homes lose.  
 
Chairman Bartow:  That is a 3 to 1 vote.  The preliminary plat is approved. We can 
set a public hearing for March 8th for the plat.   
 
Mr. Heller:  Will you need the HOA items by then?  
 
Mr. Keniry:  We will need to see the filings for it.  You won’t have it done by then, but 
at least you can show us that it is in the process.  
 
Mr. Heller:  I know that the water extension is currently being reviewed by the DEC, 
but I don’t know if we will have the approval by then.  Is that necessary for the final 
plat. If it is, we should push the date off until that arrives.  
 
Mr. Lewis:  We do need to see that.  
 
Chairman Bartow:  You let us know when you are ready and we will schedule you for 
the necessary meeting date.  
 
 
 
 



 

11 | P a g e  

 

7. Prime Group Holdings-Aircraft Storage Hangar-Site Plan Review and Special Use Permit Applications 
177.-1-42.1-continue 
Chairman Bartow: Now back before us is the Prime Holdings Aircraft Storage Site Plan and Special Use 

Permit. Cover Letter dated 9/27/22 conveying project information. Everyone should have before 

them: 

1. Site Plan Review application dated 9/23/22. 
2. Special use Permit application dated 9/23/22. 
3. Short For EAF dated 7/27/22. 
4. Site Layout Plan dated July 2022 
5. Proposed Hanger Building sketch dated 9/23/22Lease Agreement dated received 9/28/22. 
6. Prime Group Holdings Site Plan Maps/Plats dated July 2022 
7. Prime Group Amended Site Plan Map w/ Set Back distances received 10/12/22 
8. Email from Tim Daily of McFarland Johnson dated 10/26/22 conveying Saratoga County 

Resolution 297-2022 from their October 18th meeting approving a lease agreement with Prime 
Group Holdings. 

9. Letter from TDE Joel Bianchi dated 11/8/22 providing their first review of the proposed 
hanger. 

10. Letter from our TDE dated 11/8/22 to potential involved agencies expressing the Milton 
Planning Board to be Lead Agency for the project.  

11. Lighting Plan plate prepared by McFarland Johnson dated October 2022. 
12. Revised design plans dated January 2023. 
13. Correspondence from Robert Costa, MacFarland Johnson, dated 1/24/22 responding to our 

TDE comments dated 11/8/22. 
14. Correspondence dated 2/6/23 from TDE MJ Engineering regarding their second review of the 

project. 
 

Is the project applicant or their representative here to provide an update on the project? 

 

Tim Bailey:  The biggest change is that we shifted the building back 15 feet to the south to avoid an 

electric duct that serves the runway.  We didn’t adjust the roadway, or move any trees, we just shifted 

the building and shortened the driveway into the hanger.   

 

Relating to the TDE comments, we added a dumpster pad, we increased the road size to 20 feet to 

accommodate emergency vehicles coming into the site as requested.  We also added some signage 

and added some details. Other things that have changed on the site plan are, addressing the design 

and calculations of the sewar and soil testing. The storm water has been updated with town guidelines 

with site basins to be used during construction.    

 

Mr. Lewis or Ms. Bianconi, do you have any comments or questions? 

 

Mr. Lewis: I looked it over, he seems to be addressing questions that the TDE requested.    
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Chairman Bartow: Why does the entrance coming off Geyser have to be wider for emergency vehicles, 

wouldn’t the other roads have to be widened also?  

 

Mr. Bailey: The fire truck access is limited to this front area or there is another way that they can come 

in through north American Hangers. There is only one road that is required for access.  The other Road 

that goes around the airport is for the county to access their land and space.  

 

Mr. Whittel:  Can you explain the sheathing off the pad, how do we know the water will not infiltrate 

your hanger?  

 

Mr. Bailey: We have the 1.5 to 2% grade coming out of the hanger. There will be a low point there. I 

think what you are seeing is the temporary conversions.  That is put there to keep run off out of the 

work site.  

 

Mr. Whittel:  I am just looking for neighborhood harmony.   

 

Chairman Bartow: Can you explain the lighting to us? How are you trying to minimize it.  

 

Mr. Bailey:  Every light fixture is dark shy compliant and anything off the back side of the building, we 

are keeping it a lower height.  Off the front they are a little bit higher and the parking lot side.   

 

Mr. Buckley:  What is the anticipated use? How many planes, how often will they be in use. I’m 

assuming that this is for track season 

 

Mr. Bailey:  This hanger is for one plane and it is a private plane. There is not an exact number of how 

many times a week the plane is used.  

 

Chairman Bartow:  They lease the land and build a private structure; this is a large plane.  It is not for 

the track; this is used for business.  They do work all over the globe.  

 

Mr. Baily: Right now, the plane is housed off site. The plane comes from offsite, lands, picks up the 

passengers, takes off. Then comes back in, drops off passengers and then departs.  By having the plane 

on site here in Milton, it will eliminate at least 1 take off and 1 landing.  

 

Mr. Keniry:  In my notes it doesn’t show that they County was contacted about this project.  

 

Chairman Bartow: Sue please reach out to them.   
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There being no further comments or questions I will entertain a Motion to schedule a public hearing 

for March 8, 2023 at 7:05 p.m.; Ms. Stevens Second, Mr. Whittel, any discussion; please Poll the 

Board.  Mr. Marsicano - yes,  Ms. VanDeinse – yes,   Ms. Stevens – yes,   Mr. Whittel – yes,   Mr. 

Buckley – yes,   Chairman Bartow – yes.    

 

8. Town Highway Garage- Discussion of the preliminary design for the proposed town highway garage 
on Rowland St.   
 
Chairman Bartow: As I mentioned last month the Town Board as requested us to provide comments 
on the proposed new Town Highway Facility on Rowland St.  You all should have received the 
Preliminary Design Report dated 12/21/22 and supporting design plans.  Ms. Bianconi would you like 
to provide an overview of this proposal for the Board? 
 

Ms. Bianconi: The Town has been working on a plan for some time now on the relocation of the 

highway garage and its facilities to Rowland street.  Everyone has received a copy of the preliminary 

design report that sums up the conceptual plans for this project. This report can be found on the 

Town website under “committees”. The big picture is that a new highway facility is required.  There 

are several issues in the current building.  The concept is a pre-engineered metal building that will 

accommodate the vehicles with plow frames on them.  Provide 4 maintenance bays, welding facilities 

and controlling air quality issues.  The plan is to limit overhead bay doors, they are expensive.  There 

will be a wash bay to maintain the vehicles.  There will be an office area that will accommodate the 

highway department and parks department. We will be providing comfort spaces for break areas, 

training rooms and sufficient storage areas. 

 As far as the site, we will ensure that there is safe traffic circulation, security and that the esthetics 

match TC district guidelines.  There is also a cold storage building that will replicate what is currently 

on site.  This will include space for vehicles and small equipment.  The fuel island will be located on 

the site that will match all the safety standards.  The island and cold storage building to the interior of 

the site and brings the highway garage upfront closer to Rowland Street.  The site already has a salt 

shed on it and this plan works with this existing shed.  There are also provisions for bunkers on site for 

the public to access for supplies that the Town supplies.   

To touch on the high lights of the metrics.  The new garage, single story structure is about 27,720 

square feet.  There is about 100x30 in the office block and the garage is 240x100 feet, wash bay is 

60x20 and sits adjacent to the building. The one-way truck traffic will go through the building with a 

herringbone design.  There are 4 maintenance bays and 10 parking bays and one wash bay.  The roof 

space is intended to be about 28 foot.  Cold storage is approximately 150x80, it has storage for 9 

vehicles, 3 multiuse bays, shelving units and a roof height of 26 foot.  

In terms of schedule, the first quarter of the year the Town Board has reviewed these plans and has 

now referred them to all of you for comment and review.  At some point the Town Board will accept 
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the preliminary design and that will allow us to move into the phasing part of the project.  This project 

will have 2 phases.  First being, relocation of the fuel island and construction of cold storage facility.  

This phase will also include of the site grading, prepping the site, erecting the fencing, and placing 

temporary structure on site. Second phase is the erection of the highway garage.  Later this year 

detail design would be completed, and the project would be bid later in 2023 and construction would 

begin after that.  The goal is to complete the project in 2024.  

Please keep in mind that the plans that you have are conceptual.  They are in the very early stages. 

There will be a lot of interest in what the building will look like, that faces Rowland Street in reference 

to sidewalks, landscaping and other esthetics.  You can see some renderings in this preliminary report, 

but we will be adding a lot more details in the future.  The idea is to get all the features fixed on site, 

understand the grading, the security requirements and then move into design and esthetics.    

Chairman Bartow:  What I have been asked to do prior to the Town Board meeting on the 22nd is to 

give them our recommendations. Does anyone have some thoughts?  

Mr. Whittel:  If this is in Town Center why are we not following the TC guidelines more closely? 

Pertaining to placement of the buildings.  I would look to see if the building can be moved up closer to 

the Road.  It is possible and it would give you more room in the back. There is an existing driveway for 

the salt shed now.  Where would the exit be, on that road? Also, I wasn’t sure what the drawings 

were showing, it looks like there are trees that are being added or planted.   

 

Ms. Bianconi: The North entrance is what we have worked around in our conceptual design.  The 

current Southern gravel exit will be moved slightly.  

 

Mr. Whittel: This will push it further south. So, the Town should consider the trucks that are entering 

and their entry onto the road.   

 

Ms. Bianconi: The south entrance is for the personal vehicles of people that work there and for the 

public. The north entrance is the business entrance that is where the trucks will be entering and 

exiting.   

 

Mr. Whittle: Taking a right turn into the entrance will cause back up.  Consider adding a turning lane.  

 

Ms. Bianconi: The challenge will be the space.  We will look at that and see what can be done but we 

must make sure that we have enough space on Rowland to accomplish that. Is there an instance 

where traffic is backed up due to these trucks?  
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Chairman Bartow:  If you watch how they leave, there are a few moments in between each dispatch.  

When one is leaving the next truck is filling with salt.  So, there are several minutes in between each 

truck. It is not like a school bus situation, where everyone is trying to leave at once. I understand your 

point, but I don’t see that this would be an issue.   

 

Ms. Bianconi: One of the other questions we have due to TC guidelines is, do we want sidewalks? If 

we are putting a sidewalk here, we must consider how it would work and how do we make it safe? 

We are going to have large vehicles turning in and out, 

we need to think about all of those different things.  

 

Mr. Whittel:  This is why I have brought up the TC guidelines. However, a sidewalk there may or may 

not work.  One property down doesn’t really bring you anywhere.  No one is walking to the highway 

department.  

 

Ms. Bianconi:  It’s about a connective issue, not about people walking to the highway department.  

 

Chairman Bartow: The property to the south of the Town site has just been sold.  So, this wouldn’t be 

a sidewalk to nowhere and there will be walking destinations eventually.   

 

Mr. Lewis: Just north of the project you have residential areas.  We would need county approval for 

these sidewalks.  

 

Chairman Bartow: I would like the Town to be compliant to the TC guidelines with sidewalks, trees, 

lighting and curbs.  How can we ask others to do it if we don’t do it ourselves? I do want to comment 

on the building and the placement.  The building isn’t pushed up towards the road because of its 

purpose.  This is a building that will be lit up at odd hours of the night.  We could maintain a fair 

amount of a vegetive buffer, so the light is guarded a little bit.  The lighting and placement of the 

building help the vehicles get in and out safely.  

 

Ms. Bianconi: The placement of the building acts as a buffer to help with these items.  Its similar to a 

buffer.  The idea of the placement of the building was also to separate the uses of the buildings, 

separate the humans from the big trucks.   We have thought about the traffic pattern and placement 
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of the building many times.  We have considered the turning patterns that happen on site and we 

considered the worst weather conditions possible and came up with this plan.  The quiet stuff is on 

the South side of the site, the louder stuff is opposite of that.  We even considered the back up 

beepers, they are noisy. We did have other drawing where we moved the building closer to the road, 

it can be done. We will end up with more asphalt.  

 

Chairman Bartow:  I am not a fan of the storm water being next to the sidewalk area. Why not move 

the stormwater to the middle of the site that is empty.   

 

Ms. Bianconi: There are some items that we worked on pertaining to this.  The waters in the proposed 

stormwater area have soils that will allow drainage and we should not have standing water at all.  Due 

to the slop, we will not need a fence in that area.  We would do a safety bench and vegetation 

instead.  That way it would look better esthetically.  

 

Ms. Stevens:  How far back is it set now?  

 

Ms. Bianconi: I can get you that plan that represents that.  

 

Chairman Bartow: Does the Town have 19 snowplows? 

 

Mr. Lewis: What you see on site is not all of the town equipment. We have other areas in the Town 

that we store equipment on.   

 

Ms. Bianconi: These facilities are built every 50-60 years. So, when we were programing this, we 

looked at it very conservatively but with the most flexibility. It is not intended to represent the stock 

that the Town has now.  It’s about the size of the vehicles also, they do keep getting larger.    

 

Mr. Whittel:  The building has an odd shape to it.  

 

Ms. Bianconi:  The building is a giant rectangle with two smaller rectangles attached to it.  We 

separate the office space from the truck parting because we have fire walls. It is built like this for 

efficiency, and it avoids having one long continuous building that looks oppressive.  It has visual 
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change; the office space will be a different height.  It gives architectural variation.   

 

Mr. Whittel: The back part of the building is taller than the front part of the building and there is a 

delta in the roof?  

 

Ms. Bianconi:  These drawings are conceptual, and we have not detailed that part of the design. The 

idea is that we don’t want to heat an office building that is 20 feet high, it just doesn’t make any 

sense. There is a lot of intension behind this is being represented. There are a lot of costs with these 

buildings, so we are trying to contain that also.  

 

Mr. Whittel: Is there a reason why there is not a restroom accessible from the parking lot.   

 

Ms. Bianconi: It is something that can be done but it will add costs.  We are not big fan of putting 

water and sewer lines under concrete.  If there is a problem, they are very difficult to deal with and 

very costly.  

 

The design of the building has been gone over by the Highway Superintendent and Deputy to 

maximize the efficient of the space.  They look at their space here and tried to move it to Rowland 

and in the meantime make it more effective and cost efficient, while making it work for the residents.   

 

Ms. Stevens: There is room for growth?  If expansion needs to happen, is that possible?  

 

Ms. Bianconi:  Expanding these buildings off the gable ends, is the most cost effective. It would be 

expanded to the north. It is sited where it is because of the additional space that can be used it 

necessary.  If we move the building closer to Rowland Street, we are reducing the ability to expand. If 

cold storage had to be expanded, we would extend off the end into the East. So, those ideas were 

built in and could be done with minimal disruption.  

 

Ms. VanDeinse: The building is not parallel with the street. If you did make it parallel to the street, 

would that effect turning for the trucks?    

 

Ms. Bianconi: If you go to the site now, you will see that it is a vast piece of property. The building is 
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not parallel because it’s a site planning for traffic circulation and safety. The building would be the 

same price if we constructed it parallel or the way it is proposed. We have these TC guidelines, what 

these guidelines are here to do is create a mixed-use environment, this building not a commercial 

space, this is a public works facility even though it is in TC. It has a different purpose.  We are trying to 

create and design the site, so a snowplow driver knows where they are supposed to go without 

having signs or striping of the road.  

 

Mr. Whittel:  I am still confused on why the stormwater is located where it is.  

 

Ms. Bianconi:  Well, the site slopes that way so we were taking advantage of the natural grading and 

eliminate some of the asphalt. That is where the water wants to go but we can look into alternative 

methods.  

 

Mr. Whittel:  You are using asphalt, is any of it pervious?  

 

Ms. Bianconi: There are two reason why we are not using pervious asphalt. First, it does not hold up 

well under the turning movements of heavy vehicles. It unravels on its edges and it welts.  We will 

have a well-defined traffic pattern on this site so that wont work.  Where we have less turning on this 

site, it is something that may work. The second reason is because we have salt and sand on this site.  

No matter how good your house keeping is it tends to get plugged up very quickly.  We would like to 

use pervious in areas, this would reduce our storm water sites. The good news is that you do have 

really good drainage on this site. Maybe we can incorporate both types of aspault.  

 

Mr. Lewis:  I think we need to remember, if we do put pervious asphalt in certain spots, we will still be 

plowing those areas and slating them with the town’s heavy vehicles. So, this asphalt will always have 

contact with heavy equipment.  

 

Ms. Bianconi:  Remember this is a conceptual plan.  There are no calculations yet.   

 

Chairman Bartow: On the weekends there are a lot of residents that use the services that the Town 

offers.  Is there still going to be salt and mix available for them outside the gate?  

 

Ms. Bianconi:  Yes, it is hard to see and there is going to be a control for access.   



 

19 | P a g e  

 

 

Chairman Bartow: You are designing this facility to have 15 men’s lockers and 3 female lockers.  This 

is a day of inclusion.   

 

Ms. Bianconi: We took direction from the highway department; we can revisit it.  

 

Chairman Bartow:  The plan also says water from a well. It also says that it will have water from an 

existing site.   Also, look at the amp service, in the day of electric equipment, this is something that 

needs to be addressed.   

 

Ms. Bianconi:  I am not sure where the well came from.  It is public water.   From my understanding 

we need to do a lot more work on electrical for this site. We have not got that far yet. We are figuring 

out how to get power to the main building a split off power from the salt shed.  Cold storage will need 

power but not heat. We are working our way through those things.  

 

Chairman Bartow: If you do not get this project approved by Dec 31, 2024 or if you get any state 

funded money for this project, the push is going to be on you for electric.  Natural gas will not be an 

option. It is thought that there will be electric snowplows by 2035.  Even for cold storage, the amount 

of hand tools that will be stored in there that have potential to become electric.   

 

Mr. Buckley: What is the district regulation of use?  

 

Chairman Bartow:  They are exempt. This would be a public use.   

 

Ms. Bianconi:  I have taken a lot of notes, thank you for your input.  There may be ways that we can 

reconfigure some of these items.  I look forward to receiving your notes and really appreciate it.   

 

9. Adjourned 

Are there any other matters to be brought before the Board? There being none I will entertain a 

Motion to adjourn at 8:39 p.m.; Ms. VanDeinse, Mr. Marsicano all in favor signify by saying Aye. 

 


